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BY ______ VOw M DEPUTY
REDACTED FUR
PUBLIC DISCLOSHR=
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA
United States of America, No. CR-19-00002-PHX-SMB (BSB)
Plaintiff, INDICTMENT
V. VIO: 18 U.S.C. §242
(Deprivation of Rights Under Color
Mackenzie Davis, of Law)
Count One
Defendant.

18 U.S.C. §§2244(b) and 1153
(Abusive Sexual Contact)
Count Two

18 U.S.C. §1519
(Destruction of Evidence)

Count Three

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:

General Allegations

The Grand Jury charges that at times relevant to this Indictment:

1. The Hopi Ranger Enforcement Services (HRES) was a law enforcement
agency located on the Hopi Indian Reservation in Navajo County, Arizona. HRES law
enforcement rangers were sworn to uphold the United States Constitution.

2. Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS was a HRES ranger.

3. C.A., a female, was arrested by Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS for
Driving Under the Influence.

4. C.A. was handcuffed in the backseat of Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS’
patrol vehicle, while Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS was driving C.A. to the Navajo

County Detention Center.
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5. Paragraphs One through Four are incorporated by reference in the counts
below.
COUNT ONE
6. On or about November 15, 2016, in the District of Arizona, Defendant
MACKENZIE DAVIS, while acting under color of law, did willfully deprive C.A. of the

right to be free from unreasonable seizure, a right secured and protected by the Constitution
and laws of the United States. In so doing, he touched CA’s breast, put his mouth on C.A.’s
bare breast, and photographed C.A.’s bare breasts with his cellular phone, all while she
was handcuffed in the backseat of his patrol car, and all of those acts against her will.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 242.

COUNT TWO

7. On or about November 15, 2016, in the District of Arizona, within the

confines of Indian Country, Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS, an Indian, did knowingly

engage in sexual contact with C.A. without C.A.’s permission, when Defendant

MACKENZIE DAVIS intentionally touched and put his mouth on C.A.’s breast with an

intent to abuse, humiliate, harass, degrade, arouse and gratify the sexual desire of
Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1153, 2244(b).
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COUNT THREE
8. On or between November 15, 2016, and December 21, 2016, all dates being
inclusive, in the District of Arizona, Defendant MACKENZIE DAVIS, acting in relation

to and in contemplation of a matter within the jurisdiction of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, an agency of the United States, did knowingly alter, destroy, and conceal a
record, that is, a photograph, from his cellular phone, with the intent to impede, obstruct,
and influence the investigation of that matter, specifically, the investigation into the sexual
misconduct he committed against C.A.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1519.

A TRUE BILL

S/
FOREPERSON OF THE GRAND JURY
Date: January 2, 2019

ELIZABETH A. STRANGE
First Assistant United States Attorney

Sl
ABBIE BROUGHTON MARSH
Assistant United States Attorney

ERIC S. DREIBAND
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division, U.S. Department of Justice

D

FARA GOLD
Special Litigation Counsel
Criminal Section, Civil Rights Division

S/
MAURA WHITE
Trial Attorney
Criminal Section, Civil Rights Division




